
City Council Special Minutes 
March 25, 2008 
Page 1 of 3 

CITY OF COPPERAS COVE 
CITY COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

March 25, 2008 – 9:00 A.M. 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Reeves called the special meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Copperas Cove Texas to order at 9:00 a.m. 

 
B. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Council Member Somera gave the Invocation, and led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

C. ROLL CALL     ALSO PRESENT 
  
 Roger P. O’Dwyer    Andrea M. Gardner, City Manager 
 Robert L. Reeves    James R. Thompson, City Attorney 
 Larry D. Sheppard    Jane Lees, City Secretary 

Mark E. Peterson   
Charlotte Heinze 

 Ray Don Clayton 
Fred Harris  
Frank D. Somera, Jr. 

 
D.        PUBLIC HEARINGS/ACTION – None. 
 
E. ACTION ITEMS 
 

1. Consideration and action to declare the office of the Mayor forfeited and 
vacated.  Robert Reeves, Mayor Pro Tem 

 
Mayor Pro Tem Reeves gave an overview of item E-1. 
 
Council Member Sheppard requested to say a few words. Mayor Pro Tem Reeves said 
that a motion would be in order before opening the item up for discussion. 
 
Council Member Harris said that the council has found that the Mayor has violated the 
Charter on five different charges. He proceeded to make a motion that the office of the 
mayor be forfeited and vacated. Council Member Clayton seconded the motion. 
 
Council Member Sheppard spoke to the Council and said that the Council has had one 
of God’s chosen men speak, a retired general speak, and heard Frank Somera pray for 
the soldiers in harm’s way who have fought and died for the right to a free vote. He said 
Copperas Cove has had that, today we stand ready to take it away. I think this is terrible; 
I think it’s wrong and I think it’s unlawful. 
 
Carole O’Dwyer, 1703 Highland Drive. Mrs. O’Dwyer stated that nobody ever bothered 
to ask her for a comment or how she felt. She said that the last year has been a 
nightmare for them. She said that the one person she counted as a friend is the one who 
documented her activities. I’m so sorry that you chose to put us and the citizens of 
Copperas Cove through all of this. 
 



City Council Special Minutes 
March 25, 2008 
Page 2 of 3 

Roy Barrett, representing Roger O’Dwyer. He stated it was hard to know where to start 
because he felt that the Council has already made up their minds to remove the Mayor. 
He said it was a lynching and what the Council planned to do today was hang the dead 
body.  He said that the Council voted that he violated the Charter, and that just means 
that five of you made a political decision. He said the Council did not listen to evidence 
and have not based their decision on the evidence. The Council came up with nine 
violations, all of which revolved around him allegedly giving orders to the City Staff, and 
that violated the Charter. You found five of them to be true. He said that if the Council 
were a fair minded bunch they would ask what happened and think about the 
seriousness of it, then decide. He said there is no evidence that the Mayor gave an order 
to anyone and there is no evidence that he harmed the City in any way. He asked how a 
Mayor can suggest something that City Staff ignores and say that it harmed the City. He 
suggested that the Council just doesn’t like the way he does things. He said that only the 
voters can decide that. He asked the Council to follow what is right and fair. He said that 
they may not think he is a good mayor, or doesn’t do a good job, or that he interferes. 
Those are political issues, not violations of the Charter. He said that the Council may 
want to reprimand him, which may be justified. He said that the Council may suggest 
other ways to heal the City, but not vacate his office. Mr. Barrett said that if the Mayor is 
kicked out today, the Council has ignored the facts and the Charter and made a political 
decision. Mr. Barrett asked the Council to vote the motion down because the Mayor 
didn’t do anything wrong. He said that the Council does not have the will of the people 
behind them. The Mayor has been a community server, School Board member and 
Planning and Zoning Commission member, with no problems. He has spoken up for 
people in this community and he has not been a pawn for any special interest group. He 
said that those five things don’t amount to a hill of beans. He said that the Council plans 
on starting on Council Member Sheppard next. He said that all this will cause division 
and lack of faith in the government of this community and do much more damage to the 
City than what the Mayor could possibly do in the next 14 months of his term. He asked 
the Council to not remove him from office, but have a fact finding hearing, and try to heal 
the City. 
 
Mike Scanes, representing Roger O’Dwyer. Mr. Scanes said that the Issue on the table 
today is whether to remove the Mayor from office. He said that there has been an effort 
by some of the council since September 11, 2007 to find something that would allow you 
to get rid of the Mayor. He stated that the people and citizens of this City do not want this 
to happen. The people you represent do not want this to happen. It seems to me that 
you will do this anyway. These charges of allegedly giving orders about agenda items 
and talking points seem frivolous. He has done nothing unlawful and committed no 
crime. The Charter says you can declare the office of a City council person forfeited, but 
does not say you can declare mayor position forfeited. The Mayor and Council Members 
are different positions as stated in your Charter. Referring to the plaques along the wall 
of the council chambers on fairness, character and integrity, he told the Council it’s 
never too late to do the right thing. We respectfully request, one last time, that you do 
the right thing and say ‘no’ to what is going on here today. 
 
Roger O’Dwyer, 1703 Highland Drive. I am still the mayor of this City. I stand this 
morning to lose my job. As two lawyers have said and I will say and anyone who has 
listened, there is no proof. But that’s O.K. He stated that his mail and his wife’s mail that 
is sent to this building is opened. He said he has asked the City Secretary to please stop 
doing that. He said his mail is opened at the direction of Mr. Thompson. He stated that it 
is illegal for people to violate peoples mail. There is no proof that he ever disrupted 



City Council Special Minutes 
March 25, 2008 
Page 3 of 3 

anything. No one who testified said he ever gave them an order. There is no proof that 
he ever disrupted anything. He said there has to be an element of proof that what he did 
caused disruption. There is no evidence to that, yet you are going to do what you are 
going to do because you don’t like me. Speaking to Mayor Pro Tem Reeves, he said that 
you have taken and passed notes back and forth to Ms. Gardner. I will be putting in an 
Open Records Request to ask Ms. Lees to gather those notes up. He said that at least 
four people on the dais right now have close ties with the military and you can sit there 
and in good conscience and say, ‘we know all about this, but we will kick him out of 
office for trying to end the war early and bring the soldiers home early,’ because that’s 
what that letter to the Secretary of State was all about. You have no evidence on that 
charge in particular and you have no evidence on the talking points. He said that the 
facts have not been heard. You’ve made your minds up a long time ago. I hope you 
sleep well tonight.  
 
Council Member Sheppard. This City Council has done more to divide the City of 
Copperas Cove than anything any Mayor could do. I think the people are behind him and 
I would ask the people of Copperas Cove to please take your city back over. 
 
Council Member Peterson. Just because our supporters that elected us as council men 
and women to this Council are not here in the chambers applauding every word we say, 
does not mean  that we are not supported. We have a small percentage of people here 
who support the Mayor. I have not seen the reports in the Cove Leader Press that 80 
percent support him, I would like to see those.  
 
Council Member Somera. Whatever is done here, let’s move forward. It has been a long 
time. 
 
A vote was taken with the following results:  
 

Robert L. Reeves yes 
Larry Sheppard no 
Mark E. Peterson yes 
Charlotte Heinze yes 
Ray Don Clayton yes 
Fred Harris  yes 
Frank Somera, Jr.  yes 

 
Motion passed six to one. 
 
F. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business, Mayor Pro Tem Reeves adjourned the meeting at 9:46 
a.m. 

 
____________________________ 

       Robert L. Reeves, Mayor Pro Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Jane Lees, City Secretary 


